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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Tc the Members
Go Digit Infoworks Services Private Limited

Report on the audit of Standalone Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Go Digit Infoworks
Services Private Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March,
2023, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement
of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended on that date, and
notes to the financial statements, including a summary of the significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the standalone financial
statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the
Companies Act,2013, as amended (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and
fair view in conformity with the-accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state
of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2023,the loss and other comprehensive income,
changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities
under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the independence requirements that are relevant to
our audit of the standalone financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules
made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the standalone
financial statements.

Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information.

The other information comprises the Director’s Report including Annexures to Board’s Report
but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
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Go Digit Infoworks Services Private Limited
independent Auditors’ Report on Standalone Financial Statements

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read
the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements, or our knowledge obtained during the course of our
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.
Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Act with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true
and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, total comprehensive income,
changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principes
generally accepted in India, including IND AS specified under section 133 of the Act read with
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the
Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and
other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation
and presentation of the standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view and are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to
do so.

The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and
to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone financial
statements.
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Go Digit Infoworks Services Private Limited
Independent Auditors’ Report on Standalone Financial Statements

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section
143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls. :

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease
to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that,
individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable user of the standalone financial statements may be influenced. We consider
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and
in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified
misstatements in the standalone financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant

deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. “EPAR
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Go Digit Infoworks Services Private Limited .
Independent Auditors’ Report on Standalone Financial Statements

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

d)

f)

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order,2020 (“the Order”), issued by
the Central Government of India in terms of Sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013, we give in the “Annexure”, a statement on the matters specified
in paragraph 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based oh our audit we report that:

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive
Income, Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by
this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Ind AS
specified under Section 133 of the Act and other accounting principles generally
accepted in India. \

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors for the year
ended 31 March, 2023 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors
is disqualified as on 31 March, 2023 from being appointed as a director in terms of
Section 164 (2) of the Act.

A separate report as required under clause (i) of sub-section (3) of section 143 of the
Act, on adequacy of internal financial control over financial reporting of the Company
and the operating effectiveness, is not enclosed herewith as the Company complies
exemption criteria specified in notification No. F. No.1/1/2014-CL-V as amended by
notification dated 13 June 2017 read along with notification No. G.S.R. 880(E) dated 13
July 2017 issued by Ministry of Corporate Affairs.

FRN
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Go Digit Infoworks Services Private Limited
Independent Auditors’ Report on Standalone Financial Statements

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our
opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us: '

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which may have an impact on
its financial position. (Refer Note 29)

ii. The Company does not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts
for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii. There were no amounts, which were requifed to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv. With respect to clause (e) of Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,
2014, as amended:

(a) As represented to us by the management, to the best of its knowledge and belief,
no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed
funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the company
to or in any other person (s) or entity (ies), including foreign entities
(“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the intermediary shall, whether directly or indirectly lend or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by oron
behalf of the company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee,
security, or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(b) As represented to us by the management, to the best of its knowledge and belief,
no funds have been received by the company from any person(s) or entity(ies),
including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company shall, whether directly or
indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide
any guarantee, security, or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(c) Based on audit procedures, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us
to believe that the representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any
material misstatement.

v. The Company has not declared any dividend during the financial year 2022-23,
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Go Digit Infoworks Services Private Limited
Independent Auditors’ Report on Standalone Financial Statements

vi. With respect to clause (g) of Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,
2014, as amended, the requirement under proviso to Rule 3(1) of Companies
(Accounts) Rules,2014 of mandatory audit trail in Company Accounting Software is
postponed to Financial Years commencing on or after the 01 April 2023 as per
notification G.S.R. 235 (E) dated 31 March 2022 as issued by Ministry of Corporate
Affairs. Accordingly, reporting for the same is not applicable.

3. The provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act are applicable only to the
Public Companies. Accordingly, the reporting on payment to directors in accordance
with the said Section is not applicable to the Company.

For Kirtane & Pandit LLP

Chartered Accountants

Firm;R istration No.105215W/W10005
|
z

(_f'.'
—Parag Pansare
Partner P
i \7 {'”;fq/lf()
Membership No: 117309 & )
UDIN: 23117309BGQVAM9228 (=/  FRN E—]
[ 105215W/ |
W100057 7
/z_’{@c'
Pune, 09 June 2023
Kirtane & Pandit LLP

Chartered Accountants Page 6 of 11



Go Digit Infoworks Services Private Limited
Independent Auditors’ Report on Standalone Financial Statements

ANNEXURE TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred in para 1 ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our
report to the Members of the company on the standalone financial statements for the year
ended 31t March 2023)

We report that:
i. (a)in respect of the Company'’s Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets:

(A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of property, plant and equipment.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of intangible assets.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has a
program of physical verification of property, plant and equipment wherein all items
of property, plant and equipment are verified once in every 3 years period, which is
reasonable with regard to the size of the Company and nature of its assets.
Accordingly, such verification was carried out in previous years ended 31 March
2022 in line with verification policy. No material discrepancies were noticed on such
verification.

(c) According to the information and explanations given by the management and on
the basis of our examination of the records of the Company, the company does not
have any immovable property. Accordingly, provision of Para 3 (i) (c) of the said
order are not applicable to the Company.

(d) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE) & intangible
assets during the year. Accordingly, provision of Para 3(i) (d) of the Order is not
applicable to the company. 1

(e} According to information and explanation given to us by the management, no
proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the company for holding any
benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988)
and rules made thereunder. Accordingly, provision of Para 3(i)(e) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

i, (a) As the Company is engaged in the business of providing services. Accordingly, the
Company does not hold any inventory. Accordingly, provision of Para 3(ii)(a) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b)According to the information & explanation given,--_-'lcq,;gﬁ\_and on the basis of

examination of records of the Company, the Compaﬁ'f;-'i‘fa's no lﬁ-een sanctioned any
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Go Digit Infoworks Services Private Limited
Independent Auditors’ Report on Standalone Financial Statements

vi.

vii.

viii.

working capital limits from any banks or financial institutions on the basis of security
of current assets. Accordingly, provision of Para 3(ii)(b) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.

According to information and explanation given to us, the Company has not granted
any loans, secured or unsecured, to Companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or
other parties. Accordingly, provision of Para 3(|||) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

As per the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not given loans
or guarantees which are covered by the provisions of Section 185 of the Act and
further in our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us,
the Company has complied with the provisions of Section 186 of the Act in respect of
investments made by it.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
accepted any deposits from the public under Section 73 to 76 or any other relevant
provisions of the Companies Act and the rules framed there under or neither has
amounts which are deemed to be deposits and accordingly reporting under this Para
is not applicable. As informed to us, no order has been passed against the Company,
by the Company Law Tribunal, RBI or any other court or any other tribunal.
Accordingly, provisions of Para 3(v) of the Orde( is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Central Government has
not prescribed maintenance of cost records under section 148(1) of the Act, for the
services rendered by the Company. Accordingly, provision of Para 3(vi) of the order is
not applicable to the Company. :

According to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of statutory dues:

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our

examination of the records of the Company, amounts deducted/ accrued in the
books of account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including Provident
Fund, Income Tax and Goods & Services Tax, Employees’ State Insurance, Cess and
any other material statutory dues have been deposited regularly during the period
by the Company with appropriate authorities.

(b) Asrepresented to us, there are no such amounts that have not been deposited on
account of dispute in respect of statutory dues as referred to in sub-clause (a) as
on 31 March 2023.

According to the information and explanations given to us and as represented by
management, we have not come across any transactions, not recorded in the books of
account, which have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax
assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961.
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Go Digit Infoworks Services Private Limited
Independent Auditors’ Report on Standalone Financial Statements

Xi.

xii.

xiii.

Based on representation given by the management of the company and according to
the information and explanations given to us the company has no loans or other
borrowings. Accordingly, provision of Para 3(ix) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(a)in our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not raised money by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments) or term loans during the period. Accordingly, provision of
Para 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or
convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, provision of Para 3(x)(b) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

(a) During the course of our examination of the books and the records of the Company,
carried out in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and
according to the information and explanations given to us, we have neither come across
any instance of material fraud by the Company or on the Company by its officers or
employees, noticed or reported during the perlod nor have we been informed of any
such case by the Management.

(b)No report has been filed by us under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit
and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with Central Government.

(c) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company is not required to have any whistle-blower mechanism as per section 177 (9)
read with rule 7 of the Companies (Meetings of its Board and Power Rules, 2017) hence
no reporting is required under this clause.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company is not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, provision of Para 3(xii) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, transactions with related
parties are in compliance with Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 where applicable
and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as
required by the applicable Indian Accounting Standards.

The Company complies with the exemption criteria specified under section 177 of the
Companies Act,2013. Therefore, the corresponding provisions are not applicable to
the Company and accordingly, provision of Para 3 (xiii) of the Order insofar as it relates
to Section 177 of the Act is not applicable to the Company. P
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Go Digit Infoworks Services Private Limited
Independent Auditors’ Report on Standalone Financial Statements

Xiv.

XV.

Xvi.

xviii.

Xix.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company is not required to have an internal audit system as per provisions of the
Companies Act 2013. Accordingly, provision of Para3(xiv) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, during
the year the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors
or persons connected with him as referred to in section 192 of the Act. Accordingly,
provision of Para 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

As per the information and explanation given to us, the Company is not required to be
registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Accordingly,
provision of Para 3(xvi)(a) and (b) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(c) As per the information and explanation givén to us, the Company is not a Core
Investment Company as defined in the regulations made by the Reserve Bank of India.
Accordingly, provision of Para 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(d) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanation given to us, in the
group (in accordance with Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016)
there are no companies forming part of the promoter/promoter group of the Company
which are CICs.

The Company has not incurred any cash loss during the financial year ended on 31
March 2023 and the immediately preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly,
provision of paragraph 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and on the
basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets
and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial
statement, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based
on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to
our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the
date of the audit report that company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at
the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from
the balance sheet. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future
viability of the company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to
the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that
all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get
discharged by the company as and when they fall due.
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Go Digit Infoworks Services Private Limited
Independent Auditors’ Report on Standalone Financial Statements

XX. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, Section
135 is not applicable to the company as the company is incurring Losses. Hence, Para
3(xx) is not applicable to the Company.

XXi. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has only one subsidiary company which is an insurance Company. Reporting
under the Order is not applicable to subsidiary,Company as it meets the exemption
criteria under Para (2) (2) (ii) of the Order. Accordingly, provision of Para 3(xxi) is not
applicable to the Company.

For Kirtane & Pandit LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.105215W/W100057
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Go Digit Infoworks Services Private Limited
Standalone Balance Sheet as at 31 Mar 2023
CIN: U74999PN2016PTC167624
[aummint in € Lakhs)

4 M Asat
Particulons Note
B 31 Mae 2023 31 Mar oz
ASSETS
Mo Current Assets
Pruperty, plant and equlpmenit 3A 882 1,069
v.apital work in progress Ei -
Intangible assels ac 8 63
Right of Use Asse! 3D 3,107 3,551
Investrent In Subsidiary 4A 99,000 99,000
Financial assets
Investimenis -
Other linarcial assets 4B 253 234
Ciirent Assets
Financial assets
Investments 4B 1,061 1,677
Other hnancial assets 4p 33 31
Trade receivables 5 - 501
Cash and cash equivalents 6 6 9
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents mentionad above 6A 5 5
Currenl lax assets 96 113
Other current assets 7 208 i61
TOTAL ASSCTS 1,04,659 1,056,413
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Lauiry
Equity share capital 8 138 138
Instruments entirely equily in nalule 8 78,000 78,000
Other eguity 9 21,898 22,114
Talal equity 1,00,036 1,00,252
Ion currant liabllitles
Employee benefits Labilities 10 17 15
Financial liakilities 11
Other financial liabilities 251 233
Otr.zt payables 13 1,039
Lease Liability 3.695 3,995
Deferred Revenue 11 2 16
Deferred \ax liabilities 13 -
Other Non current liabilities
Curpan Labilitias
Employee benelits liabilities 10 n* 4
Financial liabilities 11
Trade payables J
Dues to micro and small enlerprises 1 10
Due to Others 144 45
Other payables - -
Lease Liability 298 276
Other finandial liabililies 118 80
Cther current liabilities
Sratutory dues 12 52 448
Provision for taxation 12 21 -
Others 12 11 -
Todal Natiths 4,623 6,161
TOTAL ECUTTY AN L ABILITIES 1,045,655 1,006,413
*Figurer ade below tha rounding off naregs adopted by the company
Notes [arming part o1 Financial Statements 1&2

#sper ourregort atlached For and on behall of the Board

Ve Kirtane nrid audit LLp
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number

105215W / W100057 wal Philip Varghese
Director
F16YES DIN - 03410192
Place Bangaluru, i Place: Bengaluru, India
Date: 08Jun 2023 Date: 08 Jun 2023
- Lo nr
& A 4
Parag Fansare Samee: Bakshi
Pariner Company Secretary
Membership No 117309 . M. No - F6964

Place: Pune, India
Date: 09 Jun 2023

Place: Pune, Indiz
Date: 09 Jun 2023




Go Digit Infoworks Services Private Limited

Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 Mar 2023

CIN: U74999PN2016PTC167624

{Amount in X Lakhs)

For the year ended

For the year ended

Particulars Note
31 Mar 2023 31 Mar 2022
Income
Revenue From Operations 14 2,531 2,398
Other income 15 136 82
Total Income 2,667 2,480
EXPENSES
Operating expenses 16 555 553
Employee benefit expenses 17 986 1,155
Depreciation and amortisation expenses 3 700 716
Other expenses 18 267 238
Finance costs 19 345 364
Total Expenses 2,853 3,026
Profit/(Loss) Before Exceptional items and Tax (186) (546)
Exceptional items -
Profit/{Loss )Before Tax (186) {546)
Current tax 13 21
Deferred tax - -
Income tax expenses 21
Profit/{Loss J{or the year (207) {546)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
¢
Other comprehensive income to be reclassified to
profit and loss in subsequent period
Other comprehensive income not to be reclassified to
profit and loss in subsequent period
Remeasurement of defined employee benefit plans (10) (9)
Total Other comprehensive income for the year (10) (9)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR (217) {555)
Loss for the year
Attributable to
Equity shareholders (9,801) (10,140)
Total comprehensive income for the year
Attributable to
Equity shareholders (9,801) (10,040)
Earnings per share for continuing operations
Basic (958.15) (991.24)
Diluted {958.15) (991.24)
Earnings per share
Basic (Face Value of Rs. 10 Each) (958.15) (991.24)
Diluted (Face Value of Rs. 10 Each) (958.15) (991.24)




Notes forming part of Financial Statements 18&2

As per our report attached

For Kirtane and Pandit LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number
105215W / W100057

[ o
I Eaehe -
Parag Pansare
Partner
Membership No. 117309
Place: Pune, India
Date: 09 Jun 2023

For and on behalf of the Board

I/f

A\ilip Varghese

Director =t
DIN - 03410192

Place: Bengaluru, India
Date: 08 Jun 2023

Kamesh
Chairmai
DIN - 01816985
Place: Bengaluru, Irid;
Date: 08 Jun 2023

Sameer Bakshi
Company Secretary
M. No - F6964
Place: Pune, India
Date: 09 Jun 2023
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Go Digit Infoworks Services Private Limited
Standalone Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended 31 Mar 2023

CIN: U74999PN2016PTC167624

[Amaunt In & Lalhs)

P For the year ended For the year ended
articulars
31 Mar 2023 31 Mar 2022
Cash flows from operating activities
Revenue from operations 3,113 2,621
Payments of operating and other expenses {3,577) (2,484)
Deposits, advances and staff loans, net 1
income taxes pald, net 81 72
Goods and services tax paid, net {Including erstwhile service tax) (296} {186)
Net cash flows from operating activities (A) (678) 23
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of fixed assets {15) (93)
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets 1
Purchase of investments =
Sale of investments 5
Loans disbursed
Repayments received
Rent / Interests / Dividend received
Purchase of money market instruments and liquid mutual funds (4,959) (2,240)
Sale of money market instruments and liquid mutual funds 5,684 2,201
Expenses related to investments
Net cash flows from Investing activitles (B) 711 (127)
Cash flows fram financing activities
Proceeds from issue of share capital, net of share issue expenses
Proceeds from borrowings
Repayments of borrowings
Interest / dividends pald
Net cash flows from financing activities {C}
Net Increase In cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 33 {104}
Cash and cash equlvalents at the beginning of the year (Refer Note A Below) (26} 78
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year {Refer Note A Below) 6 {26)
Note A: Reconcillation of cash and cash [ as per the 1ent of cash flows:
{imaunt In % Lakhs)
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 Mirch 2023 31 March 2022
Cash & Cash Fquivalents (Refer Note &) 6| 9
Bank Overdraft (Refer Note 11) - {35)
Balance s per Cash Flow S 6 [l_sji
Notes foriming part ol Financial Stataments V&2

Note B : The above Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared under the ‘Direct Method’ as set out in Ind AS 7, ‘Statement of Cash
Flows'.

As per our report attached For and on behalf of the Board

Q%m.ﬁw

For Kirtane and Pandit LLP Kilne Philip Varghese
Chartered Accountants Chairm? ; Director
Firm Registration Number DIN - 01Ey = DIN - 03410192

Place: Bengalury, India

Place: I!urt:-'glf:-r, India
D bes 08 Jun 2024

Date: (1l Jup 2223

(? I'\"r),. \

NEAN AL

1052 15W, 100057

Faray Panssie

Fartner

Membrership Mo, 1173063
Mace: Pune, India

[dtes 04 lun 2023

FRN
105215W/ | %

Samenr Bakahi
Company Secretary
I, Mo - Tis0d
Phice: fune, India
[¥ate; 09 lun 7022
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Go Digit Infoworks Services Private Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2023
{Currency —in Indian Rupees unless otherwise stated)

Notes to the Financial Statements

1. Background

Go Digit Infoworks Services Private Limited (“the Company”} was incorporated on 21 Dec 2016 under the
Companies Act, 2013. The Company provides integrated facilities management, business support services
& technology services and acts as holding company for Go Digit General Insurance Limited (“GDIGL").

2. Basis of preparation
(a} Summary

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting
Standards (“Ind AS”) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as
amended from time to time.

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for certain financial
assets and liabilities which have been measured at fair value (refer accounting policy regarding financial
instruments)

(b) Summary of significant accounting policies
i.  Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current / non-current
classification. An asset is treated as current when it is —

e Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in the normal operating cycle; or

o Held primarily for the purpose of trading; or

e Expected to be realised in twelve months after the reporting period; or

e Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at
least twelve months after reporting period

All other assets are classified as non-current assets.

A liability is current when it is —

e Expected to be settled in normal operating cycle; or

e Held primarily for the purpose of trading; or

o Itis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or

e There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months
after the reporting period

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities respectively.
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Go Digit Infoworks Services Private Limited

digit

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation
in cash and cash equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

Foreign currency transactions

The Company’s financial statements are presented in INR, which is functional currency of the
Company. The Company determines the functional currency and items included in the financial
statements are measured using that functional currency. However, for practical reasons, the
Company uses an average rate if the average approximates the actual rate at the date of transaction.

Transactions and balances

e Transactions in foreign currency are initially recognised by the Company at their respective
functional currency spot rates at the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition.

e Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
functional currency spot rates of exchange at the reporting date.

e Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised
in statement of profit and loss.

e Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rate at the dates of the initial transaction.

Fair value measurement
The Company measures financial instruments at fair value at each balance sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer of
liability takes place either —

e In the principal market for the asset or liability; or
e Inthe absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset of liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming the market participants act in their best
economic interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s abiity
to generate economic benefits by using the assets in its highest and best use or by selling it to
another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs
and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level of input
that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole
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digit

e Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market price in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

e Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable.

o Level 3—Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable.

For losses and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the
Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in hierarchy by re-assessing
categorisation {based on the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value measurement
as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

The Company’s Management determines the policies and procedures for both recurring, such as
derivative financial instruments and unguoted financial assets measured at fair value and for non-
recurring fair value measurement, such as assets under the scheme of business undertaking.

For the purpose of fair value disclosure, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities
on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair
value hierarchy as explained above.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Company and the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being made.
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, taking into
account contractually defined terms of payment and excluding taxes or duties collected on behalf
of the government.

The specific recognition criteria described below must also be met before revenue is recognised.

Interest income

For all debt instruments measured either at amortised cost or at fair value through other
comprehensive income, interest income is recognised using effective interest rate (“EIR”). EIR is the
rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts over the expected life of
the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of the
financial asset or to the amortised cost of financial liability. When calculating the EIR, the Company
estimates the expected cash flows by considering all contractual terms of the financial instrument
{for example, prepayment, extension, call and similar options) but does not consider the expected
credit losses. Interest income is included in finance income in the statement of profit and loss.

Dividends

Revenue is recognised when the Company’s right to receive the payment is established, which is
generally when shareholders approve the dividend.

Rental income

Rental income arising from operating leases on investment properties is accounted for on a straight-
line basis over the lease terms and is included in revenue in the statement of profit and loss.
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Tax expense comprise of currentincome tax and deferred tax.

Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from
or paid to the taxation authorities. Current tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to
the tax authorities in accordance with the Income-tax Act, 1961 enacted in India. The tax rate and
tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantially enacted, at the
reporting date.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside the statement of profit and loss is
recognised outside the statement of profit and loss (either in other comprehensive income (“oct”)
or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transactions eitherin
0Cl or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with
respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes
provisions where applicable.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability approach on temporary differences between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the
reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except when deferred
tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability that is not a business
combination and, at the time of transaction, affects neither the accounting profit or taxable profit
or loss.

In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates
and interests in jointly controlled entities, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary can be
controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for alt deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of
unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except
when deferred tax asset relating to deductible temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability that is not a business combination and, at the time of transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit or taxable profit or loss.

In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and interests in jointly controlled entities, deferred tax assets are recognised only to the
extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and
taxable profit will be available against which temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient future taxable profit will be available to allow all
or part of the deferred tax assets to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at
each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future
taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

FAN  \e |
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Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
year when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantially enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss
(either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in
correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCl or directly in equity.

The Company has not recognised deferred tax assets for deductible temporary differences and
unused tax losses. The recoverabhility of recognised deferred tax assets is dependent on the
Company’s ability to generate future taxable profits sufficient to utilise deductible temporary
differences and tax losses.

Indirect taxes paid on acquisition of assets or on incurring expenses
Expenses and assets are recognized net of the amount of indirect taxes paid, except :

When the tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the taxation
authority, in which case, the tax paid is recognized as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or
as part of the expense item, as applicable.

When receivables and payables are stated with the amount of tax included.

The net amount of tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of
receivables or payables in the Balance Sheet.

Property, plant and equipment (PPE)

PPE (including capital work in progress) are stated at cost net of accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any. The cost comprises the purchase price, borrowing costs if
capitalisation criteria are met and directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working
condition for the intended use.

Capital work in progress included in PPE is stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Repairs and maintenance costs are recognised in profit and loss as incurred.

Depreciation is calculated on straight line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets as
prescribed under Part C of Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013, except for the assets mentioned
below for which useful lives are estimated by the Management. The Management believes that
these estimates of useful lives are realistic and reflect fair approximation of the period over which
assets are likely to be used.

'::;. ‘Assets Estimated useful life
1 Intangible assets (computer software) 3
2 Leasehold Improvements - 10 years or lease hold period- whichever is less
3 Office Equipment 5!
4 Furniture 10
5 Computer 3] -

105215W/
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viii.

Fixed Assets having cost below Rs. 5000 are fully depreciated in the year of acquisition.

An item of property, plant and equipment initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when
no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset) is included in income statement when the asset is derecognised.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are
reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Intangible assets

intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial
recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses, if any.

Intangible assets are amortised over the useful economic live and assessed for impairment there is
an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and amortisation
method for an intangible assct are reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period. Changes
in expected useful live or expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied
in the asset are considered to modify amortisation period or method, as appropriate and are treated
as changes in accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible assets is recognised in
the statement of profit and loss.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference
between net disposal proceeds and carrying amount of the assets and are recognised in the
statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognised.

Leases

The Company’s lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for buildings/premises. The Company
assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract s, or contains, a
lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time
in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of
an identified asset, the Company assesses whether: {i) the contract involves the use of an identified
asset (i) the Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through
the period of the lease and (iii) the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use asset (“ROU")
and a corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases
with a term of twelve months or less (short-term leases) and low value leases.

The right-of-use assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the
lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or prior to the commencement date of the
lease plus any initial direct costs less any lease incentives. They are subsequently measured at cost
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the
shorter of the lease term and useful life of the underlying asset. Right of use assets are evaluated
for recoverability whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts
may not be recoverable. For the purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable amount {i.e. the
higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value-in-use) is determined on an individual asset
basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows that are largely independent of those from other
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assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the Cash Generating Unit (CGU) to
which the asset belongs.

The lease liahility is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease
payments. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if not
readily determinable, using the incremental borrowing rates in the country of domicile of these
leases. Lease liabilities are remeasured with a corresponding adjustment to the related right of use
asset if the Company changes its assessment if whether it will exercise an extension or a
termination option.

Lease liability and ROU asset have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease
payments have been classified as financing cash flows.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be
impaired.

When the carrying amount of asset or cash generating unit (“CGU") exceeds its recoverable amount,
the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

An asset’s recoverable amount is higher of asset’s or CGU’s fair value less costs of disposal and its
value in use. Recoverable amount is determined for individual asset, unless it does not generate
cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or group of assets.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using
a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and
risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions
are considered. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used.
The calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded
companies or other available fair value indicators.

Impairment losses are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

At each reporting date, an assessment is made to determine whether there is an indication that
previously recognised impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased. If such indication exists,
the Company estimates the asset’s or CGU’s recoverable amount. A previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine
the asset’s recoverable value since last impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is limited so
that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss
been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the statement of profit
or loss unless asset is carried at revalued amount, in which case, the reversal is treated as
revaluation increase.
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X. Provisions And Contingent Liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying benefits will be required
to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. The
expense relating to provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss.

If the effect of time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax
rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the
increase in the provision due to passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the financial statements. Due to the uncertainty inherent
in such matters, it is often difficult to predict the final outcomes. In the normal course of business,
the Company consults with legal counsel and certain other experts on matters related to litigations.
The Company accrues a liability when it is determined that an adverse outcome is probable and the
amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated. In the event an adverse outcome is possible or an
estimate is not determinable, the matter is disclosed.

Retirements and other employee benefits

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The Company
has no obligation, other than contribution payable to the provident fund. The Company recognises
contribution payable to the provident fund scheme as an expense when an employee renders the
related service. If the contribution payable to the scheme for service received before the balance
sheet date exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit payable to the scheme is recognised as
a liability after deducting contributions already paid.

The costs of providing benefits under the defined benefit plan is determined using the projected
unit credit method.

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses and the return on plan assets are
recognised immediately through the statement of profit and loss.

The Company recognises following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an expense in
the statement of profit and loss —

e Service costs comprising current service costs, past service costs, gains and losses on curtailment
and non-routine settlements; and
e Netinterest expense or income

Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilised within the next twelve months, is treated as
short term employee benefits. The Company measures expected cost of such absence as the
additional amount that is expected to be paid as a result of unused estimate that has accumulated
at the reporting date. The Comipany treats accumulated leave expected to be carried forward
beyond twelve months as long-term compensated absences which are provided for based on
actuarial valuation as at the end of the period. The actuarial valuation is done as per projected unit
credit method.

Financial instruments

~Sorvice:
) s oS AN\
\T-\ 0 R ?’
\I \ -~ : 2 8
el & S
[3( 105215W/ ) %) L 5,
\ G\ W100057 / &/ = I
PN / 4 T y
N \% 4
\\{!‘.E‘L“' o \\\C’ ‘—; Q/



Go Digit Infoworks Services Private Limited

digit

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
liahility or equity instrument of another entity.

e Financial assets

a) Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in case of financial asset not
recorded at fair value through profit and loss, transaction cost that are attributable to the
acquisition of the financial assets.

b)

Subsequent measurement
For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in three
categories —

Debt instruments at amortised cost

A debt instrument is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are
satisfied —

° The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for
collecting contractual cash flows and

° (Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specific dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest {(“SPP1”) on the principal amount outstanding

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest rate (“EIR”) method. Amortised cost is calculated by
considering any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral
part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance income in the statement of
profit and loss.

. Debt instruments and equity instruments measured at fair value through other

comprehensive income (“FVTOCI")

A debt instrument is measured at FVTOC! if both if the following conditions are satisfied

° The asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both
collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and

°  The contractual terms of the asset give rise on specific dates to cash flows that are
SPPI on the principal amount outstanding

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income and are reclassified to profit and loss in subsequent
periods.

Debt instruments, derivative instruments and equity instruments at fair value through
profit or loss ("FVTPL")
All equity instruments under the scope of Ind AS 109 — Financial Instruments are
measured at fair value.

¢) Derecognition

A financial asset or where appropriate, a part of financial asset or a part of group of financial

assets is derecognised when —
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1. The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

Il. The Company has transferred its right to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed
an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party
under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either —

©  The Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset; or
° The Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, but has transferred the control of the asset

When the Company has transferred its right to receive cash flows from an asset or has
entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained
the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the
Company continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the Company'’s
continuing involvement. In that case, the Company also recognises an associated liability.
The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on the basis that reflects the
rights and obligation that the Company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes form of guarantee over the transferred asset is measured
at lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of
consideration that the Company could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial asset

The Company applies Expected Credit Loss {(“ECL”) model for measurement and recognition
of impairment loss on following financial assets and risk exposure —

I. Financial assets that are debt instruments and are measured at amortised costs

IIl. Financial assets that are debt instruments and are measured at other comprehensive
income (FVTOCI)

II. Lease receivables under Ind AS 116 — Leases

IV. Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that
result from transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 115 — Revenue from Contracts
with Customers

The Company follows simplified approach for recognition of impairment loss allowance on

I. Trade receivables or contract revenue receivables; and
Il. All lease receivables resulting from transactions within the scope of Ind AS 116 — Leases

At each balance sheet date, the Company assesses whether a financial asset or group of
financial assets are impaired. Ind AS 109 expects the Company to measure through a loss
allowance. The Company recognises lifetime expected losses for all contract assets and / or
all trade receivables that do not constitute a financing transaction. In determining the
allowances for doubtful trade receivables, the Company uses a provision matrix for
computing the expected credit loss. The provision matrix takes into account historical credit
loss experience and is adjusted for forward looking information. Basis the ageing of
receivables that are due and allowance rate used in the provision matrix, expected credit loss
allowance is calculated. For all other financial assets, expected credit losses are measured at
an amount equal to the 12-months expected credit losses or at an amount equal to the life
time expected credit losses if the credit risk on the financial asset has increased significantly
since initial recognition.
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During the year, the Company has changed its accounting policy from calculating expected
credit loss allowance under simplified method to accounting policy mentioned above, impact
of which is immaterial.

¢ Financial liahilities

a) Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified at initial recognition as financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and
borrowing and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

b) Subsequent measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification below —

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for
trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through
profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for
the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes derivative
instruments entered into by the Company that are not designated as hedging instruments
in hedge relationships as defined by Ind AS 109 — Financial Instruments.

Gains and losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss
are designated as such at the initial date or recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS
109 are satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains or losses attributable
to changes in own credit risk are recognised in OCl. These gains or losses are not
subsequently transferred to profit or loss. However, the Company may transfer the
cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changes in fair value of such liabilities are
recognised in the statement of profit and loss. The Company has not designated any
financial liability as at FVTPL.

. Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit
or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of EIR. EIR amortisation is included
as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

c) Derecognition
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xiii.

Xiv.

XV.

digit

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as derecognition of the original liability
and the recognition of new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amount is
recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

d) Reclassification of financial assets

The Company determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition.
After initial recognition, no reclassification is made for financial assets which are equity
instruments and financial liabilities. For financial assets which are debt instruments, a
reclassification is made only if there is change in business model for managing those assets.
Changes to the business model are expected to be infrequent. The Company’s Management
determines changes in the business model as a result of external or internal changes which
are significant to the Company’s operations. Such changes are evident to external parties. A
change in the business model occurs when the Company either begins or ceases to perform
an activity that is significant to its operations. If the Company reclassifies financial assets, it
applies the reclassification prospectively lrom the reclassification date which is the first day
of the immediately next reporting period following the change in business model. The
Company does not restate any previously recognised gains, losses including impairment
losses or gains or interest.

e} Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the
balance sheet if there is a current enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts
and there is intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

Derivative instruments

Derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)
on the date on which a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured at fair
value. Derivatives are carried as financial assets when the fair value is positive and as financial
liabilities when the fair value is negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of derivative financial instrument or on
settlement of such derivative financial instruments are recognised in the statement of profit and
loss.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term
deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk
of changes in value.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the profit or loss for the period attributable to
equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the
period.

12




Go Digit Infoworks Services Private Limited

XVi.

xvii.

Xviii.

digit

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the loss for the period attributable to
equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are
adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Share Issue Expenses
Share issue expenses are adjusted against the share premium (securities premium) account.

Share Based Compensation

The company recognizes compensation expense relating to share-based payments in net profit
using fair-value in accordance with Ind AS 102, Share based payment. The estimated fair value of
awards is charged to income on a straight-line basis over the requisite vesting period for each
separately vesting portion of the award as if the award was in-substance, multiple awards with a
corresponding increase to share options outstanding account.

Equity-settled transactions

The cost of equity-settled transactions is determined by the fair value at the date when the grant is
made using an appropriate valuation mode!.

That cost is recognised, together with a corresponding increase in share-based payment (SBP)
reserves in equity, over the period in which the performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled
in employee benefits expense. The cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled transactions
at each reporting date until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting period has
expired and the Company’s best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately
vest. The expense or credit for a period represents the movement in cumulative expense recognised
as at the beginning and end of that period and is recognised in employee benefits expense.

Security Deposit Policy
The company does not follow the Amortized Cost Method for Security Deposits repayable within 12
months.

13



Note 3 - Property, plant, equipment, intangible assets and capital work in progress

Note 3A. Property, plant and equipment
{Amount in X Lakhs)

Particulars Computers | Furniture = Ct'ffice el 1174 Legseriold Total

: quip Impro L5
Gross Block
As at 31 Mar 2021 53 232 202 1,312 1,800
Additions 3 30 3 60 95
Deletions/Adjustments - - (5) - (5)
As at 31 Mar 2022 56 263 200 1,371 1,890
Additions 3 2 1 7 13
Peletions/Adjusiments {10) o* - - (10)
As at 31 Mar 2023 49 265 201 1,378 1,893
Accumulated Depreciation
As at 31 Mar 2021 43 75 115 380 613
Depreciation for the year 5 28 41 137 211
Less: Accumulated dep of the
Deletions/Adjustments - = (4) - (4)
As at 31 Mar 2022 48 103 152 518 821
Depreciation for the year 4 24 28 144 200
Less: Accumulated dep of the
Deletions/Adjustments (10) o~ - - (10)
As at 31 Mar 2023 a2 127 180 662 1,011
Net Block
As at' 31 Mar 2021 10 157 88 931 1,186
Asal 31 Mar 2022 7 160 48 854 1,069
As.al 31 Mar 2023 7 138 21 716 882

*Flaures are below the rounding off norms adopted by the company




Note 38. Capltal work in progress

(Amount in
Net book value Lakhs)

As at 21 Mar 2021
As at 20 Mar 2022 -
As at 31 Mar 2023 -

CWIP aging schedule (Amount in X Lakhs)
Amount in CWIP for a perlod of Total
CWIP Less than 1 Mare than 3
: 1-2 years 2-3 years
year years
Projects in progress - . - -
Projects temporarily
suspended . . . -
CWIP completion schedule (Amount in T Lakhs)
To be completed in
owip Less than 1 A ; _ |Mare than 3
1-2 years 2-3 years |
year years
N/A ; 5 = N

Note 3C. Intanglble assets
{Amount In R Lakhs)

Particulars ’ software

Gross Block
As at 31 Mar 2021 186
Additions -
As at 31 Mar 2022 186
Additions N
As at 31 Mar 2023 186

Accumulated Depreciation

As at 31 Mar 2021 63
Depreciation for the year 60
As at 31 Mar 2022 123
Deprociation for the year 55
As at 31 Mar 2023 178
Net Block

As at 31 Mar 2021 123
As at 31 Mar 2022 63

Asat 31 Mar 2023 8




3D. Right of Use Asset

(Amountin %

Partlculars Lakhs)
Gross Block

As at 31 Mar 2021 4,898
Additions/Adjustments {15)
As at 31 Mar 2022 4,883
Additions/Adjustments .
As at 31 Mar 2023 4,883
Accumulated Depreclation

As at 31 Mar 2021 887
Depreciation for the year 444
Deletion | .
As at 31 Mar 2022 1,332
Depreciation for the year 444
Deletion -
As at 31 Mar 2023 1,776
Mot Block

A5 at 31 Mar 2021 4,011
As at 31 Mar 2022 3,551
A at 31 Mar 2023 3,107

Depreciation provided on pro-rata basis from the date of put to use.

Useful life as per management's best estimate

As per As per Sch. Il to
Asset Management | Companie:
Estimate Act, 2013
Computer 3 3
Server 6 6
Office Equipment 5 5
Furniture 10 10
Software 3 3
10 years or 10 years or
Leasehold Leasehold
Leasehold improvements period period
whichever is whichever is
less less

Note : 1, Fixed Assets having cost below Rs. 5000 are fully depreciated In the year of acquisition.
Note : 2. The Company does not hold any Immovable property




Note 4A - Investment In Subsidiary
{Amount in X Lakhs)

Particulars RS gt
31 Mar 2023 31 Mar 2022
Unguoted equity investment in subsidiaries
{valued at amortised cost)
Asat As at Asat Asat
31 Mar 2023 31 Mar 2022 31 Mar 2023 31 Mar 2022
No. of Shares | No.of Shares Amount Amount
Investment in Go Digit General Insurance Limited (Face Value of Rs. 10
each)
72,95,65,220 72,95,65,220 99,000 99,000
% of Holdings 83.47% 84,93%
Investment in Valueattics Reinsurance timited E
50,000 of equity share at X 10 each
{During the previous year, Company has sold the Investment in one of the subsidiary companies, namely,
Valueattics Reinsurance Limited to one of the Directors at its carrying value. Thus, company has derecognised
the financial asset.)
Total Investments 99,000 99,000
Aggregate amount of unquoted investments 99,000 99,000
Note 48 -Financial Assets {Amount in X Lakhs)
Asat As at
Particulars
31 Mar 2023 31 Mar 2022
Investments - Quoted
Asat ‘As at As at Asat
(B]Other Instruments 31 Mar 2023 31 Mar2022 31 Mar 2023 31 Mar 2022
(valued at fair value through profit and loss) Units Units A t Amount
ICICI Prudential Liquid Fund 3,18,334 5,19,278 1,061 1,677
Current 1,061 1,677
Non Current : L
Other financial assets
Investment in fixed deposit (valued at amortised cost) 33 31
Security deposits given(valued at fair value} 253 234
Advance to employees [1hd E
Total other financial assets 286 265
Non current 253 234
Current 33 31
Total financial assets 1,247 1,942
Non current 253 234
Current 1,094 1,708

*Figures are below the rounding off norms adopted by the company




Note 5 - Trade receivables

(Amount in X Lakhs)

Particulars Azt s=lin
31 Mar 2023 31 Mar 2022
Receivables from related parties - 501
Receivables from other parties E
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts -
Total - 501
Break-up of security details
Trade Receivable Considered Good - Secured
Trade Receivable Considered Good - Unsecured - 501
Trade Receivable which have significant increase in credit risk £
Trade Receivable - Credit impaired =
Doubtful =
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts -
Total - 501

Trade Receivables ageing schedule as at 31st Mar 23

{Amaunt in X Lakhs)

Oumanding'fur following periods from due date of payment

Particulars 6 Mo
LM re
Lessthan® |[month| 1-2 | 2.3 | .
¥ than 3 Total
maonths: 5+1 | years |years
years
year

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables —
considered good

(it} Undisputed Trade Receivables —
which have significant increase in -
credit risk

{iii) Undisputed Trade Receivables -
credit impaired

{iv) Disputed Trade
Receivables—-considered good

(v) Disputed Trade Receivables — which
have significant increase in credit risk - -

(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables —
credit impaired

Trade Receivables ageing schedule as at 31st Mar 22

(Amount in X Lakhs)

“Outstanding for fllowing periods from due date of payment

Particulars 6 )
Lessthan6 |month| 12 | 23| Vo )
m.ﬁ;ﬂhs iq T o than3 Total
; Ly yer years
yaar
{i) Undisputed Trade receivables — 501 i ) ) ) .

considered good

(i) Undisputed Trade Receivables —
which have significant increase in
credit risk

{iii) Undisputed Trade Receivables —
credit impaired

(iv) Disputed Trade
Receivables—considered good

(v) Disputed Trade Receivables — which
have significant increase in credit risk

{vi) Disputed Trade Receivables —
credit impaired




Note 6 - Cash and cash equivalents
(Amount in X Lakhs)

Particulars fyat AS L
31 Mar 2023 31 Mar 2022
Balance with banks
In current accounts 6 9
Deposits with original maturity of less than three months
(lieques / drafts on hand -
Cash on hand =
Total 6 9

Note 6A - Bank Balances Other Than Cash & Cash Equivalents
(Amount in X Lakhs)

bt Asat As at
31 Mar 2023 31 Mar 2022
Irvestments in term deposits (with original maturity of more than three months but less than 5 5
twelve months)
Total 5 5
Note 7 - Other current assets
{Unsecured, Considered jood unless otherwise stated) (Amount in X Lakhs)
2 Asat Asat
Particulars ]
e 31Mar2023 | 31 Mar2022
Insurance premium deposit given 3 =
Recoverable from Employees 3 -
Prepayments 140 161
Deferred acquisition costs N E
Pre-Paid expenses 10 -
Ventars with debit balances 52 -
Total 208 161

*Figures are helow the rounding off narms adopted by the company
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Note & - Share capltal

(Aemaunt in € Lakhs)

=

o e —~

s

%\,_wwoom

| 105215W/ |

o

.75l Prel
Particulars Bty hisbs - o] ““E’h‘_“' Total
MNod IR Nos INR
Authorlsed share capital
As at 31 Mer 2022 46,50,000 465 1,39,53,500 1,39,535 1,40,000
Increase / {decrease) during the year - - - -
As at 31 Mar 2023 46,50,000 465 1,39,53,500 1,39,535 1,40,000
Issued share capltal
As at 31 Mar 2022 46,29,331 463 78,00,000 78,000 78,463
Increase / {decrease) during the year . - -
As at 31 Mar 2023 46,29,331 463 78,00,000 78,000 78,463
bscribed share capltal
As at 31 Mar 2022 10,22,934 102 78,00,000 78,000 78,102
Increase / {decrease) during the year - - - - .
As at 31 Mar 2023 10,22,934 102 78,00,000 78,000 78,102
Fully pald up share capltal
As at 31 Mar 2022 10,22,934 102 78,00,000 78,000 78,102
Increase / (decrease} during the year - .
As at 31 Mar 2023 10,22,934 102 78,00,000 78,000 78,102
Partly pald up share capltal
As at 31 Mar 2022 =
Increase / {decrease) during the year
As at 31 Mar 2023 - s
Shares farfelted
As at 31 Mar 2022 36,06,397 36 = 36
Increase / {decrease} during the year - -
As at 31 Mar 2023 36,06,397 36 = 36
Detalls of shareholders holdlng more than 5% shares of the company
As st 31 Mar 2023 As at 31 Mar 2023
Particulars ;
Mo NI Nos _INR
Equity shares of X 10 each fully paid
Oben Ventures LLP 4,07,000 11 4,07,000 41
Kamesh Goyal 1,53,000 15 1,53,000 15
FAL Corporation 4,62,934 46 4,62,934 46
10,22,934 102 10,22,934 102
Preference shares of ¥ 1000 each
fully paid
FAL Corporation 78,00,000 78,000 78,00,000 78,000
78.00.000 78 000 78,000,000 78,000
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Term/Right Attached to Equity Shares
The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of X 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share.
Accordingly all equity shares rank equally with regard to dividend

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company. The
distribution will be in proportion to the number of the equity shares held by the shareholders,

The dividend proposed by the Board of directors is subject to approval of the shareholders in Annual general meeting.

Preference Shares

Company has issued 12.30% Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares {CCPS) of face value of Rs. 1,000 per CCPS amounting to Rs 165 crores{at a
premium of Rs 1,200 per share) during FY 2019-20, Rs 315 crores(at par) and 165 crores(at a premium of Rs 1,200 per share}being total amount Rs
480 crores for FY 2018-19 and Rs 315 crore (at par) for the 2017-18 respectively. Any CCPS which is outstanding on the comgletion of a period of 20
vears from the date of its issue (provided that the holders of the CCPS may, at its discretion, extend the tenure if permitted by Applicable Laws)
shall immediately and automatically be converted into Equity Shares as mentioned below, subject to the maximurn permissible limit under

Applicable Laws.
Mo of CTPS Dateoflisue - | Convarslon date | Conversion Ratio
= = {copsiEquiny)
3,150,000 31-May-17 31-May-37 23141
3,150,000 e N 231811
750,000 25-Mar-13| 29-Mar-29 3551
750,000 27-Jun-18] 17:jun-39] 3552
Shareholding of Promoters
B i A Equity Shares heid by pr at31 Mar 2023 % Change during the
L SiNe | Promotername || No. ofShares | % of total shares Totsl year
1 |Kamesh Gayal 153,000 14.96% 15 il
2 Oben Ventures LLF® AD7, 000 39.79% 41 Hil
3 FAL G I 462,534 4536% 46 il
Total 1,022,934 100% 102
A Equity Shares held by p ut 31 Mar 2022 G oo | S Change during the
SiNo ___Promoter name No. of Shares | % of total shares Toml | vear
1 Ksmesh Goyal 153,000 14.96% 15 il
2 Oben Vi LLP* 407,000 3979% 41 100%
3 FAL Corporatian 462,334 45.26% 45 hil
Taotal 1.022,934 1008 102

*During the previous year Oben Ventures Pvt. Ltd. got converted Inta Oben Ventures LLP as on 9 November, 2021. Hence, now known as Oben

Ventures LLP
e B Compubsorily Cohvertible Pref; Shares {CCPS) hald by 2t 31 Mar 2025 & {mmwm
. 5iN® : rname No.ofshires | %oftotalshares|  Total = | year
1 FAL Corporation 7,800,000 | I00.00% 7,800,000 Hil
Total 7.500,000| 100.00% 7,800,000
"B Compulvarily Convertiale Pr Shares {CCPS) hild by promolers =t 51 Mar 2022 X Change during the
Bk ‘SiNe! . Promoternume | No. of Shares | % of total shires Tatal et
1 FAL T b 7,800,000 | 100.00% 7,800,000 Hil
Total 7,800,000 100.00% ?,% 000
Note 9 - Other equity
(Amount in % Lakhs)
T i Other =
S i % S
Particulars - Share premium | Retained parnl comp Othet Tatal
e i e . i
S e income. i
As at 31 Mar 2021 24,898 (2,215} (14) 22,669
Adjustments during the year - . - > -
Increase / {decrease) during the year - {546} ) - {555)
As at 31 Mar 2022 24,898 {2,761) (23) - 22,114
Adjustments during the year - - - - -
Increase / {decrease) during the year - (207} (10) - (217)
As at 31 Mar 2023 24,898 (2,968) (32) - 21,898




Note 10 - Gratuity and other post-employment benefit plan
(Amount in X Lakhs)

As at As at
31 Mar 2023 31 Mar 2022

Particulars

Defined benefit obligation - gratuity

Opening balance 6 0

Current service costs 0* 6

Closing balance 6 6
Current -

Non Current 6 6

Defined benefit obligation - leave encashment

Opening balance 13 15
Current service costs (2) 0*
Benefits paid - (2)
Closing balance 11 13
Current 0* 4

Non Current 11 9

Defined benefit cost charged to profit / loss (2) 6

Principal assumptions used in determining above benefits
Discount rate 7.29% 6.98%
Salary escalation rate 10.00% 10.00%

Quantitive sensitivity analysis

Gratuity
Discount rate + 100 basis points (5) (4)
Discount rate - 100 basis points 5 5
Salary escalation rate + 100 basis points 5 5
Salary escalation rate - 100 basis points (5) (4)

* Figures are below the rounding off norms adopted by the company
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Note 11 - Financial liabilities
{Amount in X Lakhs)
As at As at
31 Mar 2023 31 Mar 2022

Particulars

M. Trade payables
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises
(i) Related Parties .
(i) Others i 10

Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises
(i) Related Parties -
(i) Others 144 a5

Current Total (A) 145 55
Non current " \

B. Other payables

Employee stock option outstanding 13 1,039
Current 2 L
Non current Total (R) 13 1,039

C. Other financial liabilities

Security deposits taken 251 233
Payable to employees 118 45
Bank Overdraft - 35
Current Total (C) 118 40
Non-Current 251 233

D. Lease Liability

Lease Liability 3,993 4,271
Current 298 276
Non-Current Total (D) 3,695 3,995

E. Deferred revenue
Deferred revenue on fair valuation of deposits taken 2 16

Current : =
Non current Total (E) 2 16




Trade Payables ageing schedule as at 31st Mar 23 (Amount in ¥ Lakhs)
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Particulars More than 3
Less than 1year | 1-2 years | 2-3 years Total
years
((IMSME 1 - - - 1

(iOthers 144 - - E 144
{iif) Disputed dues — MSME - - . - x
{lv) Disputed dues - Others

Trade Payables ageing schedule as at 31st Mar 22 {Amount in X Lakhs)
QOutstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Particulars 1 7
Less than 1 year | 1-2 years | 2-3 years Mare than 3 Total
years
(I/MSME 10 - - - 10
(ifjOthers 45 - - - 45
{iii) Disputed dues — MSME - - - -
{iv) Disputed dues - Others
Note 12 - Other current liabilities
As at Asat
Particul ; 1 58
bk 31Mar2023 | 31Mar2022
A. Other Current liabilities
Statutory dues 52 448
Provision for taxation 21 -
Advances from Customers 11 =
Current Total (A) 84 448
Non current - -
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Note 13 - Income tax
(Amount in X Lakhs)

Particulars Asat RSt
31 Mar 2023 31 Mar 2022
The balance comprises temporary differences attributable to
PPE & Intangibles 96 35
Security Deposit Given 43 47
Lease liability 1,005 1,075
Gratuity 2 2
Leave encashment 3 2
Incorporation Expense U/s 35D . (0)
Unabsorbed loss 151 166
Unabsorbed depreciation 165 118
Deferred Tax Asset 1,465 1,446
Right of Use Asset (782) (894)
Security deposits taken 2 (2)
Deferred Tax Liabilities (780) (896)
Net deferred Tax Asset 685 549
Tax expense recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss
Opening balance - -
Tax expense during the period recognised in profit or loss 21
Adjustments/(credits) related to previous years - (net)
Closing balance 21

*Figures are below the rounding off norms adopted by the company

The Company has not recognised deferred tax assets for deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses. The
recoverability of recognised deferred tax assets is dependent on the Company'’s ability to generate future taxable profits
sufficient to utilise deductible temporary differences and tax losses.




Note 14 - Revenue from operations

(Amount in X Lakhs)

Bareaiar For the year ended | For the year ended
31 Mar 2023 31 Mar 2022
Revenue From Operations
Facility management charges 1,617 1,532
Technology services fees 914 793
Mobile protection plan 73
Total 2,531 2,398
Note 15 - Other Income
(Amount in X Lakhs
Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
31 Mar 2023 31 Mar 2022
Interest income on Fixed deposits 2 9
Interest income on Income tax refund 4 o*
Dividend income -
Rental income -
Profit on sale of investments 110 56
Interest income on Deposit given 19 17
Government grants - -
Net gain on disposal of PPE 1
Total 136 82

*Figures are below the rounding off norms adopted by the company
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Note 16 - Operating expenses

{Amount in X Lakhs)

For the year ended

For the year ended

Particul
i 31 Mar 2023 31 Mar 2022
Facility management charges 516 425
Technology services fees 39 59
Mobile protection plan 70
Total 555 553
Note 17 - Employee benefits expenses
(Amount in X Lakhs)
pil rekiare For the year ended | Forthe year ended
31 Mar 2023 31 Mar 2022
Salaries and bonus 864 743
Contribution to provident and other funds 37 34
Employee stock option expense 17 328
Gratuity expenses 12 10
Staff welfare expenses 56 41
Total 986 1,155




Note 18 - Other expenses

{Amount in X Lakhs)

Particilars For the year ended | Forthe year ended
31 Mar 2023 31 Mar 2022

Branding expenses - -
Audit fees 6 6
Statutory audit 4 4
Taxation 1 1
Other services 1 1

Reimbursement of expenses 0* -
Legal and professional charges 191 181

Director's Sitting Fees 9

Misc expenses 12 12
Rent, rates and taxes 16 12

Training expenses B —
Travelling expenses 32 25
Fair value loss on Fl at FVTPL 1 1
Net Loss on disposal of PPE - 1
Total 267 238

Note 19 - Finance costs
{Amount in X Lakhs)
5 For the year ended | Forthe yearended
Particulars : y
31 Mar 2023 31 Mar 2022

Finance charges under deposits accepted 17 16
Finance charges on lease liabilities 328 349
Total 345 364




Note 20 - Segment Reporting

Segment Information
A. Description of segments and princlpal activities

Operating segments are reported in a mannsr consistent with the internat reparting provided to the Cliie! Oprrating Decision Maker (CODMY). The [ioaril af Directors of the
Company assesses the (inancial performance and position of the Campary. The fsard of Bit ectors havee bizsn identified as the CODM. For managemofit filirposes, the Company is
rgatized into business units based o its products and sarvices ani has e repoitable segments, as lollows.

Income and direct expenses in relation to segment are categorised based onitems that are individually identified to that segment. Certain expenses are not specifically allocable
to individual segments as the underlying services are used interchangeably. The management therefore believes that it is not practicable to provide segment disclosure relating
to such expenses and accordingly such expenses are separately disclosed as "unallocated" and directly charged against total income.

B.5eg T ;. SEE t results other information as at / for the year: (Amotnt in X Lakhs)
Particulars FMs Tech M”""“;;:‘“"”“ Unallocoted Total

Period ended 31 Mar 2023

Revenue from contracts with customers

External customers 1,602 914 - 15 2,531

Inter-segment - - * 5 =

Segment revenue 14602 914 15 2,531

Operating expenses 452 39 - 64 555

Employee cost - Direct 120 56 - 724 900

Employee cost - Gratuity - 12 12

Staff Welfare Expenses 56 56

Other expenses 1 266 267

Salary cost adjustment . 570 (570 -

Finance Costs - 345

Depreciation 645 55 g

ESOP Cost provision 17

Sub-total 1,218 7159 . 914

Segment results 384 194 - {899)

Tax expenses

Other income 136

Unallocated expense

Profit after tax - . - {207)

Other information - - - - .

Segment Asset 875 8 1,03.776 1,041,660

Segment liability 4,389 - - 233 4,623

Capita| expenditire 1 3 = 3 7

*Figures are below the rounding off norms arast=d by the company
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Additional Regulatory Information
(i) Title deeds of Immovable Property not held in name of the Company
For the yezar ended 31 Mar 2023

Relevant line item in the
Balance sheet

Description of item of
property

Gross
carrying
value

Title deeds
held in the
name of

Whether title deed
holder is a promoter,
director or relativef! of
promaoter® /director or
employee of
promater/diractor

Praperty held
since which
date

Reason for not
being held in the
name of the
company**

Investment property

PPE retired from active use
and held far disposal

Others

Land
Building

Land

Building

Land
Building




Go Digit Infoworks Services Private Limited

CIN: U74999PN2016PTC167624
Ratios for the Year ended 31 Mar 2023

] Asat Asat Parcontage
Ratla umerator enominator 7 Rsasans (3% changez25%|
iy B A 1 Mnr2023 | 31 Mardoz2 | Change AR ERRIE 2N
Inventories +Debtars +Cash &
Banlc Balances Sundry Creditors +O/S Exp
Receivabl Sl = &, cC
[a) Current Ratio +Receivables/Accruals +5Short: +Shurf Term L&A + BankOD/! 219 2.89 24% N/A
term loans and advances +Provision for tax
+Marketable Investments +Proposed/Unclaimed Dividend
+Other Current Assets
Equity Share Capital +Prefrence
o ) Share Capital +R&S
b) Debt-E Rati Le d Fund: N/A N/A N/A N/A
(b) Debt-Equity Ratio e Sl rowerlkHnGS Less:Accumulated Losses {if / / / /
any) +Debtli e numerator)
Interest on Debt
BIT +Non Cash O ing E:
(c) Debt Service Coverage Ratio i on ,Sh p.eranng *P |, installment of Debt +Lease N/A N/A N/A N/A
+Non Operating Adjustments
Payments
Total Share Capital Less:
Variation is ob: d due t
(d) Return on Equity Ratio Earnings after Tax Preflrence Share Capital +R & S 0.21% -1% -62% ek I::crse:s s?r:vlz s
e SS
Less: Accumulated Losses |
Opening Stock +Purchase
[e) Inventory turnover ratio +Direct Exp +Manf. Exp Opening Stock+Closing Stock / 2 N/A N/A N/A N/A
Less:Closing Stock
#Avg of Afcs Receivable=
(f) Trade Receivables turnover ratio Credit Sales net of Return Ve CsIReeIvab|S 1011 958 6% N/A
0Op+Clo/2
: " Average Afcs
(g) Trade payables turnover ratio Credit Purchases net of Return 139 154 -10% N/A
pavable=0p+Clo/2
t ts -Cl t
(h) Net capital turnover ratio Sales net of Returns C.urr_eAn. —— 0.03 002 6% N/A
Liabilities
Ratio has b i d di
(i) Net profit ratio EAT sales Net of Returns {0.08) ©23) -64% o i e
to decrease in net loss.
Ratio has been improved due
Shareholder's Fund + long t
{j) Return on Capital employed EBIT i lj‘rl'etims SRl gl (0.00) (0.01) -66% to decrease in net loss with
l
aoie increase in turnover
Ratio has been improved due
(k) Return on investment Proflit on Investments Totat Investments 010 0.03 213% to higher return and
investment base is lower




21.Financial Instruments

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged
in a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale.

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:

a)Fair value of cash and short-term deposits, trade and other short term receivables, trade payables and other current
liabilities approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments.

bjFinancial instruments with fixed and variable interest rates are evaluated by the Company based on parameters such as
interest rates and individual credit worthiness of the counter party. Based on this evaluation, allowances are taken to
account for the expected losses of these receivables.

The Company uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments by valuation
technique:

Level 1: quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: other techniques for which all inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value are observable,
either directly or indirectly.

Level 3: technigues which use inputs that have a significant effect on the recorded fair value that are not based on
observable market data.

There are no transfers between Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 during the year ended 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022.

As at 31 Mar 2023 (Amount in X Lakhs)
Fair Value
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Particular Carrying Amount

Financial assets at
amortised cost:

- Investments 1,061 1,061 - -
- Other Financial Assets 33 33 - -
- Trade receivables . - - :
- Cash and cash equivalents 6 6 -
- Income tax Assets (net) 96 96 - -
Total 1,196 1,196 - -

Financial assets at fair value
through P&L:

- Other Financial Assets 253 - 253 -
Total 253 - 253 -
Financial Liability at
amortised cost:

- Other Payables 13 13 A "
- Trade Payables 145 145 - 2
- Other financial liabilities 118 118 - -
Total 276 276 - -

Financial liability at fair
value through P&L:

- Other Financial liabilities 251 - 251 -
- Lease liabilities 3.993 - 3,993 -
Total 4,244 - 4,244

-/'d'. ¥ .!.’T
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As at 31 Mar 2022 {Amount in X Lakhs)

Particular Carrying Amount AT
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Financial assets at
amortised cost:
- Investments 1,677 1,677
- Other Financial Assets 31 31
- Trade receivables 501 501 -
- Cash and cash equivalents 9 9
- Income tax Assets (net) 113 113
Total 2,331 2,331
Financial assets at fair value
through P&L:
- Other Financial Assets 234 - 234
Total 234 - 234
Financial Liability at
amortised cost:
- Other Payables 1,039 1,039 - -
- Trade Payables 55 55 s
- Other financial liabilities 80 80 - -
Total 1,174 1,174 - -
Financial liability at fair
value through P&L:
- Other Financial liabilities 233 - 233
- Lease liabilities 4,271 - 4,271
Total 4,504 - 4,504




22.Financial risk management

The Company’s principal financial liabilities comprise of lease obligation, trade and oth
Campany’s operations. The Company's principal financial assets include security deposit:

that is derived directly from its operations.

The Cornpany's activities exposes it to market risk, liquidity risk
approved by the Board of Directors that help in identification, measureme
risks are Identified on a continuous basis and assessed for the impacl on the
each of these risks, which are summarised below.

1. Market risk

and credit risk.

er payables. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the
s, investments, trade and other receivables and cash and cash equivalents

The Company's risk management is carried out by the management under the policies
nt, mitization and reporting all risks assoclated with the activities of the Company. These

financial performance. The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises price

risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk on investments.

i. Price risk

The company exposure to price risk arises for investment in mutual funds held by the company. To manage its pric

Company diversifies its portfolio.
Sensitivity:

The sensitivity of profit or loss to change in Net assets value (NAV) as at year end for investment in mutual funds.

NAV increases by 5%
NAV decreases by 5%

2. Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that counter party will not meet its o
exposed to credit risk from its operating activities {primarily trade receivables) and from investing activi

funds).

3.Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encou
another financial asset. The Company's approach to managing liqui
they are due, under both normal and stressed conditions in a timely manner, without incurring u

4. Fareign Currency Risk

The Company is primarily engaged in the business of providing IT & Advisory services & FMS.

The Company has entered into an ar@ngement with Mr., Christof Masch
(can be extended for further period basis mutual undetstanding), and has agreed for payment of Monthly service

1,32,000 Per Anfur. The agreed Consultancy fee is payable in Eurn from our (MR

And riow considering the quantum of service fee involved and frequericy of the payment we don't anticipate any ri
I P

mentioned service fee.

{Amount in Lakhs)

e risk arising from investments in mutual funds, the

| Foreign Currency exposure as at 31 Mar 2023

UsbD

EURO

Py

Trade receivables

External commercial borrowing

 Trade Payables

0.39

Forward contracts for receivable

Forward contracts for payable

Forward contracts for loan

{Amount in Lakhs)

Foreign Currency exposure as at 31 Mar 2022

usD

EURQ

JPY

Trade receivables

External commercial borrowing

Trade Payables

Forward contracts for receivable

Farward contracts for payable

Forward contracts for loan

Impact on profit before tax l

31Mar2023 | 31Mar2022 |
53 84

(53) (84)

bligations under a financial instruments or customer contract leading to a financial loss. The Company is
ties (primarily deposits with banks and investments in mutual

nter difficuty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or
dity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when
nacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company's reputation,

or a resident of Austria towards receipt of Consultancy Services far an initial tenure of 2 years
@ Turo 11,000 (Fixed) which is estimated at Euro
account which will be at prevailing Exchange rate at the time of transfer.

sk in forelgn exchange fluctuations w.r.t above




23.Earning Per Share

x For the Year ended Fedhe Near
Particular 31 Mar 2023 ended 31 Mar
2022
Net profit for the year attributable to equity shareholder (9,801) (10,140)
Weighted average number of equity shares 10,22,934 10,22,934
Basic earnings per share (958.15) (991.24)

The effect of potential equity shares is anti dilutive, hence not disclosed.

24.Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

The Gross amount required to be spent by the company on CSR initiatives is Nil.

25.Details of dues to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises as per MSMED Act, 2006
Based on the information received by the Company from “suppliers” regarding their status under the Micro, Small and Medium

Enterprises Development Act, 2008, below are the detail of amounts due to suppliers covered under this Act as a

Particular

As at 31 Mar 2023

Principal

Interest

As at 31 Mar 2022
Principal

Amount due to vendor

Principal amount paid (includes unpaid) beyond the appointed
date

Interest due and payable for the year

Interest accrued and remaining unpaid

10

*
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t balance sheet date.

Interest
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26. Related partles

Name of related partles and description of relationship:

A Key Managerlal Personnel ('KMP') and their Relatives Nature of Relatlonship
Kamesh Goyal Chairman & Non exceutive Director
Chandran Ratnaswami Non executive director
Philip Varghese Executive Director
Sameer Bakshi Company Secretary
B Subsldiary Nature of Relatlonshlp
Go Digit General Insurance Limited Subsidiary
Valueattics Reinsurance Limited Subsldiary (Ceases to be subsidiary w.e f 15 June 2021}
C Others Nature of Relatlonship
Qben Ventures LLP Promoter
FAL Corporation Promoter
Kamesh Goyal Promoter
{li} Related party transactlons durlng the year and balance recelvable from and payable to related partles as at the balance sheet date:
[Amount In R Lalkiis]
Transaction value Outstanding  Transaction value Outstanding|
Mame of related party Nature of ransaction for the year ended amount as at for the year ended amount as at
31 March 2023 31 March 2023 31 March 2022 31 March 2023]
A} Key Managerial Pecsonnel 'KMP') and their Refatives
Wemieah Gowval B echin s splbing e 9
Karmyaph G Salp ol |ivestments - 5
Philip Varg I reration 588 594
Samier Bakshl Remiuneration 132 120
B}  Subsidiary
1 Valueattics Reinsurance Limited (Earstwhile Investment in Equity Capital {5)
Subsidiary)
2.Go Digit General Insurance Limited Investment In Equity Capital 99,000 99,000
Security Deposit - FMS (Receipt) {251) {251)
Facility Management Services (FMS)/ Technology (2,941) (11) (2,725) s01
Support Services (Revenue)
Facility Management Services Charges 6 - S -
Reimbursement of Expenses 3 - 2
Insurance Premium paid - - 84 -
Premium Deposit - 6 = -
ESAR TDS Recovery 1,026 (13) 281 (1,039
C)  Entitles In which Director Is Interested
Go Digit Life Insurance Limited Facillty Management Services (FM5) (Revenue) (28}
Security Deposit - FMS (Receipt) (1} (11
D)  Entity having signlficant influence on GDISPL
FAL Corporation Equity Capital (46) 146)
Preference Shares {78,000) (18,000)
Share Premium Amount (24,898} (24 B8]
E) Promoters
1 Oben Ventures LLP Equity Capital {41) 141)
{formerly Known as Oben Ventures Pvt Ltd)
2 Kamesh Goyal Equity Capital {15} {15)
3 Oben Ventures LLP Professional Service Charges 38 (35) 35

{formerly Known as Oben Ventures Pvt Ltd)

Termy and conditions

All transactions with these related parties are priced on an arm’s length basis,
Retated parties [dentified includes related pagtles a4 per sectivn 2{76] of the Conyranies Act, 2013,

FRN
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27.Employee Benefits Plan

(i} Defined contribution plans - Provident Fund

The Company makes contributions for qualifying employees to Provident Fund and other defined contribution plans. During the year, the Company
recognised INR X 34,84,726 (X 32,75,453 in previous year) towards defined contribution plans.

(i) Defined benefit plans :

A) Gratuity

The Company provides for gratuity for employees in India as per the Payment of Gratuity {Amendment) Act, 2018. Employees who are in continuous
service for a period of 5 years are eligible for gratuity. The amount of gratuity payable on retirement/ termination is the employees last drawn basic salary
per month computed proportionately for 15 days salary multiplied for the number of years of service. The Gratuity plan of the Company is funded.

Gratuity is a defined benefit plan and company is exposed to the Following Risks:

Interest risk A decrease in the bond interest rate will increase the plan liability.

Investment Risk The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated using a discount rate which is determined by reference to
market yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds. if the return on plan asset is below this rate, it will create
a plan deficit. Currently, for the plan in India, it has a relatively balanced mix of investments in government securities, and other
debt instruments.

Salary risk The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the future salaries of members. As such, an
increase in the salary of the members more than assumed level will increase the plan's liability

Longevity risk The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the best estimate of the mortality of plan
participants both during and after their employment. An increase in the life expectancy of the plan participants will increase the
plan's llabllity.

The following table sets out movement in defined benefits liability and the amount recognised in the financial statements:
Changes in the defined benefit obligation and fair value of plan assets for the year ended 31 Mar 2023:
{Amount in X Lakhs)

Net amount
' {A-B)
Defined benefit  Fair value of plan :
obligation (A) assets (B)

As at 1. Apr 2022 53 46 7
Current Service cost 11 5 11
Net interest expense/(income} 4 3 1
Total amount recognised in statement of profit and loss 15 3 12
Benefits paid . - .
Re measurement
Actuarial (Gains)/Losses 7 |3) 10
Total amount recognised in other comprehensive income 7 {3) 10
Contributions by employer - 22 (22)

As at 31 Mar 2023 75 68 7




Employee benefits plan (continued)

The major categories of plan assets of the fair value of the total plan assets are as follows:

As at 31 Mar 2023 As at 31 Mar 2022
Insurance fund 68 46
Total 68 46

The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity benefit obligations for the company’s plans are shown below:

31 Mar 2023 31 Mar 2022
Discount rate 7.29% 6.98%
Expected return on plan assets 7.29% 6.98%
Future salary increases 10,00% 10.00%
Mortality ALM (2012-14) ALM {2012-14)
A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumptions are as shown below:
As at 31 Mar 2023 As at 31 Mar 2022
Sensitivity Level Defined benefit obligation on increase/decrease in assumptions
Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
Discount rate 1% increase / decrease (5) S (4) 5
Future salary increase 1% increase / decrease 5 (5) 5 (4)

The above sensitivity analyses are based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumptions constant. In practice, this is unlikely to occur,
and changes in some of the assumptions may be correlated. When calculating the sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to significant actuarial
assumptions the same method {present value of the defined benefit obligation calculated with the projected unit credit method at the end of the
reporting period) has been applied as when calculating the defined benefit liability recognised in the balance sheet.

The following payments are expected cash flows to the defined benefit plan in future years:
Expected contributions to defined benefits plan for the next year is INR 16,34,490 . The weighted average duration of the defined benefit plan obligation
at the end of the reporting period is 8.27 years (31 March 2022 8.19 years). The expected maturity analysis of undiscounted gratuity is as follows:

As at 31 Mar 2023 As at 31 Mar 2022

Within the next 12 months 1 0
Between 2 and 4 years 5 7
Beyond 5 years 73 59

The following table sets out movement in defined benefits liability and the amount recognised in the financial statements:
Changes in the Leave encasement for the year ended 31 Mar 2023:

Particular As at 31 Mar 2023 As at 31 Mar 2022
Defined Benefit Obligation 10 13
Fair value of Plan Assets - ‘
Funded Status - (Surplus)/Deficit 10 13

Present Value of Unfunded Defined Benefit Obligation -
Unrecognised Asset due to Asset Ceiling - -
(Asset)/Liability Recognised in the Balance Sheet 10 13

Amounts Recognised in Statement of Profit & Loss As at 31 Mar 2023 As at 31 Mar 2022
Service Cost 2 2
Net Interest Cost 1 1
Past Service Cost -

Remeasurements (2) 2)

(Gain)/Loss due to Settlements/Curtailments/Terminations/Divestitures - -
Administration Expenses - -
Total Expense/(income) included in "Employee Benefit Expense" o* 0*

*Figures are below the rounding off norms adopted by the company




28. Lease liabilities

Carried at amortised cost {Amount in ¥ Lakhs)
As at 31 Mar 2023 As at 31 Mar 2022

Non current

Lease liabilities 3,993 4,271
3,993 4,271

Less: Current maturity of lease liabilities 298 276

Total non-current lease liabilities 4,291 4,546

Current

Lease liabilities (298) {276)

(298) (276)

The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of lease liabilities as at 31 Mar 2023 and 31 Mar 2022

Asat 31 Mar 2023 Asat 31 Mar 2022
Less than one year 298 276
one to five years 1,320 1,647
more than five years 2,375 2,348

The Company had total cash outflows for leases of INR 6,05,08,004 in 31 Mar 2023 {INR 5,98,79,515 in 31 Mar 2022). The Company has not made any
non-cash additions to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities.

29, Contingent liabilities

There are no contingent liabilities as at 31-3-2023 as well as on 31-3-2022

30. Capital commitments
There are NIL capital commitments as of 31-3-2023. The capital commitments as of as of 31-3-2022 were NIL.

31 Current Assets, Loan & Advance and Debtors shown in Balance Sheet have a value on realization in the ordinary course of business at least equal to
the amount at which they are stated therein.

32, Balance of Debtors, Creditors and advances are subject to confirmation and subsequent adjustment, if any.

33 For the year ended 31-3-2023, the company is not required to transfer any amount into the Investor Education & Protection Fund.

34, There are no long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which provision is required to be made for material foreseeable losses in the
financial statements, as per the applicable law or accounting standards.

35, Previous year's figures have been regrouped / reclassified wherever necessary to correspond with the current year's classification / disclosure

36. Disclosure on Undisclosed Income

There have not been any transactions which are not recorded in the books of accounts that have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the
year in the tax assessments such as Search or Survey or any other relevant provisions of Income Tax Act, 1961

37. Details of crypto currency or virtual currency
The company has not traded or invested in Crypto Currency or Virtual Currency during the year.

38, Ultimate Beneficairy
Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities ("'Intermediaries"}, with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend ar invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by

3/
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39, Disclosure regarding transactions with struck off companies

The company has not ent

ered into any transactions with companies struck off under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of
Companies Act, 1956

40. Disclosure regarding compliance with Number of Layers of Companies

The company is in compliance with the number of layers pres

cribed under clause (87} of section 2 of the Act read with the Companies (Restriction on
number of Layers) Rules, 2017.

As per our report attached For and on behalf of the Board
For Kirtane and Pandit LLP

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Number
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Partner

Director

DIN - 03410192
Place: Bengaluru, Indi:
Date: 08 Jun 2023

Membership No. 117309
Place: Pune, India
Date: 09 Jun 2023

Company Secretary
M. No - F6964
Place: Pune, India
Date: 09 Jun 2023

Place: Bengaluru, India
Date: 08 Jun 2023
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